
City of Rockaway Beach 
Planning Commission Meeting Agenda        
 

Date:   September 8th, 2022  

Time:   4:30 P.M. 

Location:  Rockaway Beach City Hall, 276 HWY 101 - Civic Facility  

 
JOIN ZOOM MEETING 
HTTPS://US06WEB.ZOOM.US/J/84103077658?PWD=MJBLTLRMWFB2VU9YRHVOWHZBZKZKQT09 

MEETING ID: 513 717 9369  PASSCODE: 013664 +12532158782  US (TACOMA) 

 

CALL TO ORDER – Bill Hassell, Chair 

 

ROLL CALL 
Position #3 - Pat Olson: Present 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Present 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Present 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Present 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Present 

Position #2 - Stephanie Winchester: Present 

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Present 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. July 21st, 2022 – Olson made a motion to approve minutes as is, seconded by Umholtz; 

Motioned Carried. 
Position #3 - Pat Olson: Motion 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: 2nd 

Position #3 - Pat Olson: Approve 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Approve 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Approve 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Approve 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Approve 

Position #2 - Stephanie Winchester: Approve 

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Approve 

 

CITIZEN CONCERNS, COORESPONDENCE AND COMMENTS 

 

Charles McNeilly 123 S. Dolphin St. spoke about Short Term Rental concerns and the need for more 

regulations.  

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Falcon Subdivision continuation from July Meeting (SD 22-01) 

 

Scott presented an updated Staff report including the City Engineer’s requirements. Commissioners 

asked questions to staff about the list of conditions, fire turn around, wetlands, off and on street 

parking.  

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84103077658?pwd=MjBLTlRmWFB2VU9yRHVOWHZBZkZKQT09
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00


Applicant George Day presented 346 N Falcon St. – Spoke on behalf and has already been working on 

lot size adjustments, tree coverage, paving conditions, and other things as per the City Engineer’s 

requirements. Eileen George spoke about they have hired an arborist to look at the trees to ensure to 

keep as many trees as possible.  

 

Public comments in support – none  

Public comments in opposition - none 

 

Public hearing closed at 5:33 PM. Umholtz made a motion to close the hearing, seconded by Zedrick, 

Winchester abstained; Motion carried.  

 
Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Motion 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: 2nd 

Position #3 - Pat Olson: Approve 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Approve 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Approve 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Approve 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Approve 

Position #2 - Stephanie Winchester: Abstain 

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Approve 

 

Commissioners held discussion regarding parking on and off street. Hassell opened for a motion, 

Woida moved that Falcon Subdivision Preliminary Plat (SD 22-01) be approved with the conditions 

listed in the staff report and City Engineer’s memo, and direct staff to write a final order containing 

those conditions, Olson 2nd, Winchester abstained; Motioned Carried.  

 
Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Motion 

Position #3 - Pat Olson: 2nd 

Position #3 - Pat Olson: Approve 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Approve 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Approve 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Approve 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Approve 

Position #2 - Stephanie Winchester: Abstain 

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Approve 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. Appointment of Planning Commission Secretary – Olson made a motion to appoint Jenny 

Kettner, Ummoltz seconded; Motioned Carried. 
Position #3 - Pat Olson: Motion 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: 2nd 

Position #3 - Pat Olson: Approve 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Approve 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Approve 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Approve 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Approve 

Position #2 - Stephanie Winchester: Approve 

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Approve 

 

NEW BUSINESS - None 

avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00


 

PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS & CONCERNS 

Johnson –Rules and Procedures for PC Commission, update on NW 22nd street, tree ordinance. thanked 

for Luke to attend the PC meeting. Short-Term rental, parking and committee for cedar preserve, and 

dumpsters comment for commercial properties. 

Winchester – Rules and Procedures for PC Commission. 

Woida – tree ordinance.  

Olson – Happy about STR ordinance 

Umholtz – Short term rental and code enforcement.  

Zeedrick – Short term rental, tree ordinance and code enforcement.  

Hassell – Island Street parking for old Cedar Preserve entrance.  

 

STAFF COMMENTS AND CONCERNS 

 

Shepard – Spoke about parking on 23rd and future widening on 22nd waiting on utilities that need to be 

moved. Short Term Rental and land use.  

 

Scott – Is presenting to City Council next week on Affordable Housing, buildable lands inventory 

update and future housing needs analysis.  

 

Discussion about moving Planning Commission meeting to 4:30 going forward - all in agreement.  

 

ADJOURNMENT at 6:28 p.m.  

 

Johnson made a motion, seconded by Woida, Motion carried.  

 
Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Motion 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: 2nd 

Position #3 - Pat Olson: Approve 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Approve 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Approve 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Approve 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Approve 

Position #2 - Stephanie Winchester: no longer present 

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Approve 

 

 

 
  

avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00
avca:0ab7f37c-c797-489f-b0f9-d60c8c24d16e@00:00:00


 
 

STAFF REPORT        CASE FILE: #VAR-22-03 

         DATE FILED: 9/1/22 

         HEARING DATE: 9/20/22 

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 

 

APPLICANT: Kris & Randy Pierce 

 

REQUEST: The applicants are requesting a variance for a reduction to the required front yard setback to construct a new 
home and garage located at 873 N Miller Street.  The lot is located in the R-1 Zone and is approx. 4,515 sq ft.  The R-1 
front yard setback for lots between 3,500 and 4,999 sq. ft. is 15 feet from the property lot line and the applicant is 
requesting to reduce the front yard setback to 0 feet.  
 

A. REPORT OF FACTS 

1.) PROPERTY LOCATION:  The property is located at 873 N Miller St. in Rockaway Beach and is further identified 

on Tillamook County Assessor’s Map #02N-10W-32BB as tax lot 300.  There is no active zoning permit, but 

the applicant has informed city staff that they intend to demolish the current single-family home and 

construct a new one.   

2.) LOT SIZE: approximately 4,515 square feet 

3.) ZONING DESIGNATION: R-1 (Residential Zone) 

4.) SURROUNDING LAND USE: The subject property is adjacent to existing single-family dwellings on the north, 

south and west. To the east is Miller Street, the railroad tracks and HWY 101. 

5.) EXISTING STRUCTURES: The building is a single-family home with no garage and two outdoor decks. 

6.) UTILITIES: The following utilities serve the subject property: 

a. Sewer: City of Rockaway Beach 

b. Water: City of Rockaway Beach 

c. Electricity: Tillamook County P.U.D. 

7.) DEVELOPMENT CONSTRAINTS:  The property is not in a flood zone and does not have wetlands. The 

property is over 25% sloped thus making it located in the Hazard Overlay Zone (HO). The property sloped 

toward Miller Street because it’s located on a dune. The elevation goes from 28 feet at the street level 

property line up to 45 feet which is 47% sloped. A zoning permit will require a Geotechnical Report. 

 

B. EVALUATION OF THE REQUEST 

1.) GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL: The applicants are requesting to build a garage up to the 

property line on Miller Street.    

2.) BACKGROUND: There is no active zoning permit, but the applicant has informed city staff that they intend to 

demolish the current single-family home and construct a new one with a garage.   

3.) AGENCY COMMENTS:  

a. None received to date. 

4.) ORDINANCE STANDARDS: The following ordinance standards apply to this request. 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

Rockaway Beach Zoning Ordinance, Article 8. Variances. 

 

Section 8.010. Purpose 

 

1.) The purpose of a variance is to provide relief when a strict application of the zoning requirements would impose 

unusual practical difficulties or unnecessary physical hardships on the applicant. Practical difficulties and 

unnecessary hardships may result from the size, shape, or dimensions of a site, or the location of existing 

structures thereon; from geographic, topographic or other physical conditions on the site or in the immediate 

vicinity or from population densities, street location, or traffic conditions in the immediate vicinity. 

 

Although the purpose section of the variance provisions is not intended to be used as a criterion or standard to 

evaluate the request, it should be considered as a guide in the evaluation of the criteria as outlined below. 

 

Section 8.020. Criteria 

 (1)        Variances to a requirement of this chapter with respect to lot area and dimensions, setbacks, yard area, 

lot coverage, height of structures, vision clearance, fences and walls, and other quantitative requirements may 

be granted only if, on the basis of the application, investigation, and evidence submitted by the applicant, that 

all four expressly written findings are made:  

(a)        That a strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified requirement would result 

in practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship and would be inconsistent with the objectives of the 

Comprehensive Plan; and  

(b)        That there are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable to the 

property involved or to the intended use of the property which do not apply generally to other 

properties in the same zone; and  

(c)        That the granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare or 

materially injurious to properties or improvements in the near vicinity; and  

(d)        That the granting of the variance would support policies contained within the Comprehensive 

Plan. 

 

C. STAFF SUMMARY 

 

The applicant has addressed the criteria for a variance (see application and findings). 

 

D. CONCLUSION 

 

If, after hearing the evidence at the hearing, the planning commission agrees that sufficient facts exist to grant the 

variance, they should direct staff to write findings based on the evidence to permit the variance. If they do not find 

that sufficient evidence exists to allow the variance, they should direct staff to write findings for denial of the 

variance.   

 

 

 



 
 

 

Air Photo & Tax Lot 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Site Plan 

 


































































	PC Meeting Agenda 10_20_22
	PC Meeting Minutes 9_8_22
	Variance 22-03 Pierce Staff Report
	V 22-03 Pierce Application
	V 22-03 Pierce Site Plan



